ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
March 4, 2014
9:01 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Bert Stedman

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS:

Departnent of Public Safety
Gary Fol ger- Comm ssi oner

Al aska Police Standards Counci l
Lui s Ni eves

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion
| rene Cat al one

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO 182

"An Act relating to salary differences in collective bargaining
agreenents subject to the Public Enploynent Relations Act that
are based on a difference in the cost of living outside the
state and the cost of living in the state; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED SB 182 QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BILL NO 98
"An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety regulations
allowing village public safety officers to carry firearns."

- MOVED SB 98 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 141

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 4, 2014



“"An Act relating to vehicle registration fees for nenbers of the
Al aska National Cuard.™

- MOVED SB 141 OJT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 182

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C EMPLOYEE SALARY DI FFERENTI ALS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

02/ 19/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 14 (S) STA

02/ 25/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 25/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 25/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 27/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 27/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 04/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 98
SHORT TI TLE: VPSO FI REARVS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

04/ 05/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 05/ 13 (S) CRA, STA

02/ 11/ 14 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 11/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 11/ 14 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 13/ 14 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 13/ 14 (S) Moved SB 98 Qut of Committee
02/ 13/ 14 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 14/ 14 (S) CRA RPT 4DP

02/ 14/ 14 (S) DP: M CCl CHE, EGAN, Bl SHOP, G ESSEL
02/ 14/ 14 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER STA
02/ 27/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 27/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 04/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 141
SHORT TITLE: NATI ONAL GUARD | D & VEH CLE FEES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI

01/ 27/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 27/ 14 (S) STA, FIN

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 4, 2014



02/ 27/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 27/ 14 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/ 04/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

GARY FOLGER, Acting-Comm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guesti ons regar di ng hi s
appoi ntment as Conmi ssioner for the Al aska Departnent of Public
Safety.

| RENE CATALONE, Comm ssion Menber Candi date

Al aska Public Ofices Conmm ssion

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guesti ons regar di ng her
appointnment to the Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion.

LU S NI EVES, Council Menber Candi date

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci |

Al aska Departnent of Public Safety

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guesti ons regar di ng hi s
appointnment to the Al aska Police Standards Council.

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Executive D rector

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci l

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regarding the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council .

WLLI AM M LKS, Attorney

Civil Division-Labor and State Affairs

State of Al aska Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed departnental questions regarding
SB 182.

DAVI D SCOTT, Staff

Senator O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overvi ew of SB 98.

SERGEANT CHRI' S d FFORD, Muni ci pal Board President-Juneau

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 4, 2014



Publ i c Saf ety Enpl oyees Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT:  Announced that SB 98 should include
additional training for Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSO).

JAKE METCALFE, Executive Director

Publ i c Safety Enpl oyee Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT:  Announced that SB 98 should include
addi tional training for VPSGCs.

MONI CA SOUTHWORTH, St af f

Senat or W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding an anmendnent to
SB 98.

M KE COONS, representing hinself

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 98 and addressed liability
i nsurance and departnental responsibilities.

MONI CA SOUTHWORTH, St af f

Senat or W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview and answered questions
for SB 141.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions for SB 141.

STEPHEN BURRI S, Presi dent

Al aska National Guard Enlisted Associ ation
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 141.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 32 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 4, 2014



CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators G essel, Wel echowski, and Chair Dyson.

9:02: 07 AM
CHAIR DYSON reviewed the committee calendar and said his
intention is to nove all of the scheduled bills.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Public Safety
Al aska Police Standards Council
Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion

9:02: 24 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the Senate State Affairs Conmttee
will take up the appointees for confirmation.

9:02:47 AM
GARY FOLGER, Acting-Conm ssioner, Alaska Departnment of Public
Safety (DPS), Anchorage, Al aska.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Folger for a review of his background.

9:03: 14 AM
MR. FOLGER read a prepared statenment as foll ows:

| am the comm ssioner-designate for the Departnent of
Public Safety. | am both hunbled and honored to cone
before you today for your consideration. Let nme start
by saying this is one of the nost difficult things for
me to do, trying to sell oneself, it goes against
everything that | was brought believing, never to talk
about oneself. Even while hunting it was a taboo to
point at an animal or say sonmething |like "I was going
after that one.”

| grew up in Cantwell, 1 was brought up in two worlds
so to speak, a traditional Al aska native honme in the
western culture. Not once did | ever feel trapped in
either world, to transition between the two was easy
for nme. Once as a small boy | saw an Alaska State
Trooper get off the train in Cantwell, in those days
it was the highlight to neet the train. The trooper
got off the passenger train, shook a few hands and
then got back on. | asked ny grandnother who he was;
she sinply stated "He was the nuscle.” | often

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 4, 2014



wonder ed where ny grandnother would get something |ike
that. She was born at the turn of the century at the
upper end of the Susitna River. It wouldn't be but a
few nore years when the Parks H ghway was put in when
| next saw another trooper, that particular trooper
and | are to this day friends.

| becane nore interested in |aw enforcenent throughout
hi gh school and then it happened, | got a speeding
ticket. | thought it was better to give then to
receive, being the nice fella that I am |In 1979 I
started out in this department as a summer helper. In
1981 | went through the Trooper Acadeny and was
stationed in Fairbanks. In 1991 | transferred to King
Sal non after learning how to fly airplanes. In 1998 |
transferred to Juneau as the Southeast Commander. In
2001 | transferred to Fairbanks as a Northern Region
Commander. In 2007 | had the honor of beconming the
Director of Alaska WIldlife Troopers; this honor
included starting back up the division after the
merger was undone. In May of 2013, after 32 years, |
retired. | was really enjoying retirement when
CGovernor Parnell called and asked if | would cone back
as Conm ssioner, | consider this the highest honor.

Sonme have asked what kind of a leader I am if | was
to characterize it | would have to say a situationa
| eader. This departnent is steeped in the very proud
tradition. I would be autocratic in that | hold rules,
regul ations, and laws. In the sanme token, | would be
very open to change or a better way of doing business.
My door is always open, | accept criticism well, |
seek wi sdom and understanding, and |I'm never afraid to
apol ogize. | am also one of the first ones to standup
and take the right stand when it is tine to do that.

During the 1960s, NASA was underway wth the noon
program The nedia was doing a series of interviews
wi th the NASA enpl oyees, one of these had a journalist
talking to a NASA custodian; she stood behind her
cleanup cart in a uniform and when she was asked by
the broadcaster, "What do you do at NASA?" Her answer

wi t hout hesitation, "I'm putting a nman on the noon."
Absol utely, bar none, the best part of this departnent
is the enployees. | have been witness to countless

occasi ons when individuals go beyond the call of duty.
It does not matter if it was the janitor, program

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 4, 2014



pl anner, budget analysis, dispatcher or trooper. | am
honored to call themny friends and coworkers.

9:06:51 AM
MR FOLGER continued as foll ows:

|f selected, where do | plan to lead this departnent?
First, I would install a sense anobngst our personnel
that we work for the public. Earning and obtaining the
public's trust is utnost in our goals, public safety
t hrough public service. Second, whatever we do, do it
well and to the best of our ability. Third, be a
prof essional. When you go to a doctor, hairdresser, or
restaurant, you hope they don't have a bad day. Wy
woul d we be anyt hing el se?

Do we have challenges ahead? Absolutely! Wth
declining revenue, we are going to have to nmamke this
organi zation even nore efficient, but not |ose our
overall effectiveness. W have an ongoing mssion of
providing public safety conbined wth fiduciary
responsibilities to our citizens. Rur al | aw
enforcenent is another huge challenge. How do we
provi de services to even the snmallest comunity? This
problem is bigger than this departnent. But all
together, we can work towards this goal, partnering
with local, state, and federal programs; this can be
acconplished for the overall betternent of our folks.
This undertaking is sonething I'"mgoing to focus on in

ny tenure.

In closing, | want to offer you ny services; after
all, it's your departnment too. | have 32 years, which
is alnost all of my adult life. |I don't even begin to
know all of the answers, but as a team we can go
forward. A few years back, | saw this quote at an end

of a novie; it is attributed to Ednond Burke, "The
only necessary thing for evil to triunph is that good

men do nothing." | amnot going to let evil triunph. |
plan on being the "muscle" that my grandnother spoke
of .

9:08: 40 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL commended M. Folger for his presentation. She
remar ked that she has huge respect for the Al aska State Troopers
(AST). She noted that 75 percent of the geographic area of her
district is patrolled by AST and they do a great job; but, there

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 4, 2014



are folks in her district that have had sone bad experiences and
noted that occasionally there are reports in the news of sone
"bad apples.” She asked how soneone who is the DPS comm ssioner
patrols his own staff.

MR. FOLGER replied that his experience has been to weed-out the
bad- appl es. He explained that talking to sone people is one
possibility and sonme require progressive discipline up to and
including termnation. To earn that respect back from the fol ks
is to meet with them and say the necessary actions have been
t aken.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was objection to forwarding Gary
Fol ger's nane forward for confirmation. He announced that seeing
no objection, the conmttee will take up the next appointee.

9:11: 04 AM

| RENE CATALONE, Comm ssion Menber Candidate, Alaska Public
O fices Conm ssion (APOC), Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Fai r banks, Al aska, said she had worked for the State for a
nunber of years and part of that work was providing training as
a local government specialist. She detailed that she worked in a
| arge of nunmber of comunities in Alaska, both with village,
state, and borough officials by providing training and technical
assistance. She stated that she is famliar with APOC and
believes in public service. She said being appointed to APOCC was
the public service that she would Iike to provide for the State
of Al aska.

CHAIR DYSON asked if she was famliar with APOC s work,
st andards, and m ssi on.

M5. CATALONE answered vyes. She explained that as a |ocal
government specialist, part of the training she provided for
city council nmenbers related to APCC

CHAIR DYSON remarked that Alaska practices the so called
citizen-legislators, which neans the legislators have other
means of enploynent and are not just dependent wupon their
| egislative job. He said Alaska is such a snmall state that nost
peopl e who have private sector jobs will have contact with the
State and its agencies and personnel; that can produce sone
interesting and sonetinme difficult situations. He asked how Ms.
Cat al one sees the ethics of the situations that he previously
not ed.

9:13: 05 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 4, 2014



M5. CATALONE answered that ethics is an area that she is very
famliar wth, having worked for the State for a nunber of
years. She related that there wll always be conflicts and
msinterpretations of the rules and regulations. She set forth
that her responsibility wth APOC, since the position is
voluntary w thout conpensations, would be to inpartially take a
| ook at whatever the inplied break in the rules was for the
person that was brought up before APOC. She asserted that the
rules and regulations wll be applied as well as listening
respectively to all of the reasons and circunstances. She noted
that a review mght include sonmething as nundane as filing
personal financial reports when an individual |eaves office. She
asserted that she can be inpartial and fair.

CHAI R DYSON stated that Alaska has pretty good disclosure |aws
for candidates. He noted that what has often been discussed in
the press pertains to candidates who accept canpai gn
contributions from special interest groups. He asked M.
Cat al one to comrent on canpai gn contri butions.

M5. CATALONE agreed that canpaign contributions from speci al
interest groups is seen in the news all of the tine. She set
forth that every Al askan has to evaluate the information wthin
the regul atory frameworKk.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there is an objection to passing M.
Catal one's nane forward for confirmation. He announced that the
commttee will pass Ms. Catal one's nane forward.

9:16: 14 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

9:17: 15 AM
CHAIR DYSON addressed the confirmation of M. Folger for DPS
Conmmi ssi oner and read a statenent as foll ows:

In accordance with Article 3, Section 25 of the Al aska
Constitution and AS 39.05.080, the State Affairs
Commttee reviewed the following and recommended the
appointment be forwarded for Joint Session for
consideration: Comm ssioner of Public Safety, Gary
Fol ger. This does not reflect intent of any of the
nmenbers to vote for or against the confirmation of the
i ndi vi dual during further sessions.

9:18:13 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 4, 2014



CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee wll take up the
appointment of Luis N eves to the Al aska Police Standards
Counci | (APSC).

9:18:43 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL joined the commttee neeting.

9:18:48 AM

LUS NEVES, Council Menber Candidate, APSC, DPS, Wasilla,
Al aska, explained that he was from Queens, New York and served
in the U S Navy in addition to the U S. Coast Guard in order to
focus on law enforcenent. He noted that being fluent in Spanish
has provided opportunities to serve throughout the world. He
detailed that he had served as an instructor in addition to
conducting | aw enforcenent operations in South Anerica, Mexico,
Panama, Ecuador, Col onbia, Caribbean, and M ddl e East.

MR. NI EVES said due to the tragic events of "911," he responded
to the Valdez Terminal to provide asset protection. He remarked
that his tinme in Valdez nmade him realize that Al aska was the
state to raise children and start a newlife. He said in 2004 he
was assigned to the Maritime Safety Security Team out of
Anchorage, during that time he had the honor and privilege of
providing maritinme protection for the cruise ship industry as
well as Alaska's other maritinme assets and resource interests.

He revealed that in 2006 he joined AST. He noted having the
opportunity of being an investigator for the Child Abuse
| nvestigations Unit out of the Mat-Su Valley, as well as serving
as the law enforcenent liaison for the Mit-Su Crine Stoppers
Program He accepted a position with AST in Kotzebue and
Sel awi k, working daily with entities within the Tribal Council,
El ders Council, and Gty Council. He revealed that he is
currently the Recruitnment Sergeant for the DPS-Recruitnment and
Backgrounds Unit.

He asserted that hi s experience in i nt ernnati onal | aw
enforcement, AST, and AST recruitnment allows himto see what it
takes to wear the AST wuniform He noted wtnessing AST
candi dates from Lower 48 |aw enforcenent agencies that fail to
qualify due to lower standards. He set forth that he sees the
i nportance of being an APSC nenber and noted his goal will be to
contribute to maintaining the highest standards in |aw
enf orcenment .

9:23:18 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 4, 2014



CHAI R DYSON noted that the seat M. Nieves will be taking is the
one that is designated for a DPS officer.

MR. NI EVES answered correct.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted M. Nieves' inpressive résune. She stated
that M. N eves will be a great addition to APSC. She noted
Comm ssi oner-Designee Gary Folger's interview and her own
statenent that 75 percent of her district is patrolled by AST.
She asked how does soneone sitting on the APSC would raise and
enforce the standards or create a high standards atnosphere.

MR NEVES replied that DPS has the Ofice of Professional
Standards (OPS) that investigates allegations of wong doing by
anyone in uniformwthin DPS. He said OPS consists of 13 nenbers
that bring many |ayers of experience and professional opinions
about what a professional in uniform would look |ike. He set
forth that OPS mamintains high standards and there is zero
tolerance for people that abuse the "power of the badge.” He
asserted that |owered standards for filling vacancies should not
be risked and OPS represents what the people of Al aska denmand of
their | aw enforcenent.

9:26: 26 AM
CHAIR DYSON asked to verify that APSC does not go |ooking for
probl em conduct, but responds to conpl aints.

MR NI EVES answered correct.

CHAIR DYSON addressed issues in the past wth APSC where
m sconduct from a police officer involves the representing union
bar gai ni ng for retirement or resi gnation wi t hout t he
i nappropriate conduct showing up on the officer's record. He
asked M. N eves if anything could be done wth the scenario he
previ ousl y not ed.

MR. N EVES answered that M. Kelly Alzaharna, APSC Executive
Director, initiates investigations and presents her finding to
APSC. He explained that APSC has difficulty ruling on sonething
if a department does not report misconduct. He asserted that
APSC does everything it can to hold people accountable once
i ssues are brought to its attention.

9:29:35 AM

CHAIR DYSON asked to clarify that APSC can only respond to an
official report that is brought to APSC and cannot respond to
"whi stle blowers."

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 4, 2014



MR NEVES replied that he did not know if Chair Dyson's
assunption was true. He set forth that investigations are
brought forward regardless of whether the incident involves
whi stling blowng or a formal conpl aint.

9:30: 22 AM

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Executive Director, APSC, Juneau, Al aska,
explained that APSC takes conplaints or concerns from any
medi um She remarked that there are certain instances where the
various |law enforcenment agencies are required to report. She
noted that APSC takes citizens' conplaints on msconduct in
addition to incidents that are revealed through the nedia. She
asserted that APSC does investigate m sconduct when the incident
rises to APSC s authority |evel.

CHAIR DYSON noted an incident where there was an egregious
of fense commtted by a Village Public Safety Oficer (VPSO and
the individual was imediately fired. He reveal ed that the VPSO
firing resulted in a conplaint that due process was not
contractually foll owed. He asked Ms. Al zaharna to comrent on the
ci rcunst ances that he previously presented.

M5. ALZAHARNA responded that discipline that an enpl oyi ng agency
institutes against an enployee is separate from what APSC does.
She revealed that APSC does act if egregious behavior occurs
when an officer no longer meets their certification standards.
She specified that agencies may have a certain |evel of behavior
that they handle with a certain discipline level. She asserted
that APSC investigates behavior that falls below standards and
takes action against their certification.

9:32:15 AM

CHAIR DYSON asked if the comittee had any objection to
forwarding M. Neves' nane. He noted that there was no
objection. He announced that M. Catalone's and M. Nieves'
appointnments were being forwarded and read a statenment as
foll ows:

In accordance with Article 3, Section 25 of the Al aska
Constitution and AS 39.05.080, the State Affairs
Committee has reviewed the followng and recommended
the appointnments be forwarded for Joint Session for
consi deration: Alaska Police Standard Council, Sargent
Louis Nieves, Anchorage, was appointed June 1, 2013;
and Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion, Irene Catalone,
Fai r banks, appointed MWMarch 1, 2014. This does not

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 4, 2014



reflect intent of any of the nmenbers to vote for or
against the confirmation of the individual during
further sessions.

9:33: 28 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

SB 182- PUBLI C EMPLOYEE SALARY DI FFERENTI ALS

9:34: 01 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that the conmttee will take up SB 182, an
act relating to the salary difference and coll ective bargaining
agreenents, subject to Public Enploynment Relations Act that are
based on the difference of cost of living outside of the state
and the cost of living within the state.

He noted that a copy of a letter has been distributed to the
committee from M. Bill MIlks, Assistant Attorney Ceneral,
Al aska Departnent of Law. He noted that M. M1l ks specializes in
|abor law. He explained that M. MIlks' letter confirnms that
there is no legal or constitutional issue with the Senate State
Affairs Committee or the Twenty Eighth Legislature in dealing
with SB 182. He added that M. MIks stated that the
consideration of SB 182 does not contravene the National Labor
Rel ations Act. He said M. MIk states that if and whenever SB
182 m ght becone |law, then the underlying statutes woul d change;
but any negotiations that are conpleted before that date would
be under <current law and have no effect. He said as he
understands, the naritime unions' negotiations are ongoing and
their contracts expire in June. He noted that the effective date
for SB 182 is imediate. He revealed that if SB 182 passes the
current legislative session before a contract is negotiated, the
law wi Il be in place.

He asked M. MIlks if his summary on the bill's inpact on
negoti ati ons was accurate.

9: 36: 24 AM

WLLIAM M LKS, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division-Labor
and State Affairs, State of Al aska Departnment of Law, Juneau,
Al aska, answered yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOMWBKI addressed Section 17.02 of the WMasters

Mates & Pilots contract and noted that the contract says the
fol |l ow ng:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 4, 2014



The Cost of Living Differential (COLD) is a mandatory
subject of collective bargaining; it should not be
changed, nodified, adjusted, re-determned, or altered
in any way by the state unilaterally and no change
shall be made wi thout the consent and agreenent wth
t he uni on.

He set forth that SB 182 was a timng issue and the
Adm nistration was arguing for a nodification wthout wunion
consent. He asserted that if the bill passes, the Adm nistration
was seeking to circumvent the collective bargai ning agreenent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI conceded that the issue does not pertain to
the National Labor Relations Act, but does apply to the Public
Enpl oyee Relations Act. He asserted that the nodification from
the bill was an unfair |abor practice, particularly if SB 182
goes into effect before the end of the contract. He asked if
there is Suprenme Court case | aw on what he previously addressed.

MR. MLKS replied that there is no Suprenme Court case |aw that
he is directly aware of. He explained that the point he was
trying to make was that the agreement itself would continue for
the term of its agreenment. He stated that the section Senator
W el echowski nentioned is subject to negotiation like all of the
terms of the contract and is subject to negotiation under the
rules that apply, which are what the Public Enploynent Relations
Act states right now. He remarked that the Al aska Departnent of
Law could not envision wunfair |abor practice. He said he
believed that SB 182 states that it does not affect the existing
agreenent and the existing agreenment would continue to be in
effect.

9: 38:42 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that the bill has an imed ate
effective date. He set forth that if the bill goes into effect
before the end of the contract, COLD statutorily goes away. He
asked if it would be better for the bill to go in effect after
the end of collective bargai ni ng agreenent.

MR. MLKS replied that the second part of Senator W el echowski's
guestion is up to the Legislature. He renmarked that as far as
changing the terns of the current <collective Dbargaining
agreenent, the change in law does not affect agreenents that
were entered prior to the effective date.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 4, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed the collective bargaining
agreenent from the Inland Boatnen's Union and read the
fol | ow ng:

Thi s agreenent includes a pay plan providing a cost of
living differential between enployees living in state
and those living out of state in accordance to AS
23. 40. 210.

He set forth that the collective bargaining agreenent would be
citing a statute that does not exist if the bill goes into
effect prior to the end of the agreenent. He asserted that the
safer approach would be to have an effective date after the
current collective bargai ni ng agreenent expires.

CHAI R DYSON asked to clarify that the legal reference to the
"State of Alaska" was a term of art that pertained to the
executive branch that also includes the judicial and |egislative
br anches.

MR. MLKS answered that SB 182 addresses the entities covered
under the Public Enploynent Relations Act. He explained that the
law is referring to the general law of the State of Al aska. He
reiterated that SB 182 also states that it does not affect
agreenments that are already in place.

9:41:39 AM

CHAIR DYSON disclosed that he was thinking of the classic
separation of powers and that a section of law noted could not
bi nd and prohibit the Legislature from changing statute.

MR. M LKS answered that he agreed.

CHAI R DYSON announced that the Chair will entertain a notion.
9:42:18 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved SB 182, |abeled 28-LS1432\N from conmittee
wi th individual recomrendati ons and attached fiscal note.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there was an objecti on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI announced t hat he objects.

CHAI R DYSON asked if Senator Welechowski cared to speak to his
obj ecti on.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 4, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI stated that SB 182 is fundanentally
i nappropriate for the Admnistration to cone before the
Comm ttee during the mddle of a collective bargaining agreenent
and support a change to what they agreed to. He set forth that
the Adm nistration specifically agreed to a provision that says
they would not seek to change, nodify, adjust, or alter in
anyway w thout the consent of the union. He said the unions are
not consenting and the bill potentially goes into effect before
the expiration of the contracts. He said his second objection is
his fundanental disagreenent with what the Committee is trying
to do which would result in a pay cut to Al aska enpl oyees while
keepi ng the pay the sanme for out of state enpl oyees.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied that she does not agree with Senator
W el echowski. She explained that SB 182 allows the unions to
negoti ate the wage they have been receiving as they negotiate
the next contract. She set forth that there is nothing in the
bill that forces a pay cut and the bill sinply places the
process in a negotiated arena.

CHAI R DYSON noted that having been a mariner nost of his life,
he is very appreciative of the skills and experience that are
necessary and it is very inportant for the passengers,
particularly on the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVMHS) to be
safe. He stated that he expects the Admnistration wll
negotiate a contract that not only keeps, but recruits very
qual i fied people. He said he understands the demand on the North
American continent for experienced mariners and nost "landsnmen”
have no idea how nuch of the world' s commerce noves by sea. He
noted his recognition and expects a responsible action from the
Adm ni stration, treating the AVHS fol ks fairly.

9:44:. 54 AM
CHAIR DYSON asked for a roll <call vote. Senators @ essel
Coghill, and Chair Dyson voted yea; Senator W el echowski voted

nay, therefore, SB 182 noved out of the Senate State Affairs
Standing Commttee by a 3:1 vote.

9:45: 20 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.
SB 98- VPSO FlI REARMS

9:46: 14 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that SB 98 was before the commttee.

9:46: 48 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- March 4, 2014



DAVI D SCOIT, Staff, Senator O son, Al aska State Legislature,

Juneau, Al aska, said the sponsor wanted to state on the record
that he objects to the characterization of Village Safety Police
Oficers (VPSO) as a private police force. He said VPSGs are
public safety officers of the state; they were created in state
|aw and are paid from state funds. The VPSO program is a unique
partnership between the state and the regional nonprofits and
also municipalities. He said VPSGs work daily with the Al aska
State Troopers (AST). He added that when VPSCs nmke arrests,

they transfer perpetrators to AST. He asserted that VPSGCs are
not a private prison and not a private police force. He said the
sponsor would also like to note, and it has been tal ked about in
commttee, that Alaska is a very unique place and we all take a
ot of pride in that uniqgueness. The VPSO program is a unique
Al askan solution to a unique Al askan issue. He pointed out that
AST cannot travel to rural Alaska as it can in the state's other
rural regions. He said there is a difference between rural

Al aska and the rest of rural America, the difference is |ack of
roads. He said the sponsor is very supportive of the VPSO
program and noted that VPSGs are on the first line of defense

He remarked that VPSCs are the first responders in a place in
Al aska where it is tough to have AST fulltime.

SENATOR G ESSEL commented that Alaska is very unique and noted
that the State has other unique prograns |like Community Health
Aides in addition to Comunity Dental Aides, all because of the
state's rural configuration. She said her exanples are anal ogous
and asserted that the noted aides were also professionals that
neet hi gh standards.

9:49: 31 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked if anyone in the commttee room would like to
testify.

9:49: 48 AM

SERGEANT CHRIS G FFORD, Public Safety Enployees Association
(PSEA), Juneau, Al aska, addressed Senator G essel's statenent
pertaining to health aides in rural Alaska. He opined that the
health aides are probably certified health aides through the
training and education required to provide those services. He
said SB 98 can be inproved upon and noted that SB 98 essentially
authorizes VPSGs to carry a firearm in the same manner as a
police officer. He set forth that PSEA believes that VPSGs
should be trained to the same standards that police officers and
AST are. He explained that the purposes of the stringent
training is to ensure that in a deadly force or a potential
deadly force situation, the VPSO is capable to determ ne whet her

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 4, 2014



deadly force is in fact authorized and that no other option is
available. He said it is the job of citizens and |awrakers to
gui de those responsi ble for protecting the public by making sure
that those who do protect the public have the best training that
they can get. He summarized that PSEA's position is that VPSGs
should receive full police training if they are going to carry
firearns and possibly using deadly force.

9:51:48 AM

JAKE METCALFE, Executive Director, Public Safety Enpl oyee
Associ ation (PSEA), Anchorage, Al aska, noted his background with
VPSCs. He referred to the A aska Rural Justice and Law
Enf or cenent Commi ssi on Report of 2006, a report that pointed out
a lack of public safety in rural Al aska. He noted a comment in
the report as foll ows:

It is safe to assunme that no group of Caucasian
communities would tolerate simlar circunstances and
t hat woul d demand equal protection under the | aw.

MR. METCALFE pointed out that the VPSO program training covers
five basic areas: law enforcenent, firefighting, search and
rescue, water safety, and energency nedical services. He stated
that VPSO training differs from basic |aw enforcenent training

He said VSPGs have different duties and do not work under the
sane standards as |aw enforcenent. He set forth that PSEA takes
great pride in the nenbers that it represents and it 1is
concerned about the standards and the training that its nenbers
get. He asserted that bad-apples are unfortunately in every
group in society. Standards and training provide the opportunity
to make sure that the best people are working in positions of
trust. He asserted that if the VPSOCs are state enployees, carry
weapons, and perform |law enforcenent duties, VPSOs should work
under the sane training and standards that other state and | ocal
| aw enforcenent enployees work under. He set forth that PSEA
thinks it is inportant to the community that VPSOs have equa

protection under the law, just |like everybody else in Al aska. He
said PSEA urges the comrittee to include the sanme training that
other law enforcenent officers in Al aska have. He asserted that
PSEA believes that the sane training for VPSOs protects the
state, the native nonprofits, the VPSGs, and the people within
the village. He summarized that PSEA urges the committee to nmake
sure that VPSCs work under the same training and standards with
enough noney provided so that VPSGs can get the needed trai ning.

9:57: 05 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 4, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI announced that he has an anendnment and
of fered Anendment 1.

CHAI R DYSON obj ected for discussion.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI explained that Amendnent 1 is a sinple
anendnent that requires VPSGCs who carry firearns neet the
m ni mum standards that are consistent with the standards adopted
for police officers. He asserted that fundanentally the VPSGCs
shoul d have the sanme training as those in urban Al aska.

SENATOR G ESSEL said the North Slope Borough enploys its own
VPSCs who are arned. She asked how many issues or problens have
the North Sl ope Borough had with arnmed VPSGCs.

9:58: 26 AM

MONI CA SOQUTHWORTH, Staff, Senator Wel echowski, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, answered that she is available to
answer technical questions about Anendnent 1.

SENATOR G ESSEL stated that the anendnent's sponsor indicated
that unless the nore defining anmendment is adopted, VPSCs wil |
not be conpetent to carry firearnms. She pointed out that there
have not been firearm incidents with VPSOs in the North Slope
Bor ough. She recalled her comment about certified health aides
hired by the Al aska Native Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC) t hat
are not state licensed. She revealed that the ANTHC heal th aides
program has denonstrated conpetency in hiring professionals.

SENATOR COGHILL noted that the original Ilanguage is "Meet
m ni mum standards training for carrying firearns" and the
anendnent states "M ninmum standards consistent wth standards
adopted by the Police Standards Council." He asked what the
difference was between mninmum standards and the standards by
the Police Standards Council.

10: 00: 40 AM

M5. SOUTHWORTH replied that the anmendment before the committee
directly addresses sone of the concerns that were brought up by
Sergeant Gfford and by M. Mtcalf in regards to having
extensive training which is nore than the bill currently
requires.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI poi nted out that the amendnent specifically
referenced AS 18.65.240, a statute that specifies the standards
for training. He explained that the anendment sets forth that

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- March 4, 2014



the training should be the sane as police officers under AS
18. 65.240. He read the foll ow ng:

The person may not be appointed as a police officer
except on a probationary basis unless the person:

1. Satisfactorily conpleted a basic program of
police training approved by the Council which

includes at least 12 hours of instruction
regarding domestic violence as defined in AS
18. 66. 990.

2. Possesses other qualifications the council has

established for the appointnent of police officer
including mninum age, education, physical and
mental standards, <citizenship, noral character
and experience. The Council shall prescribe the
means of presenting evidence of fulfillnment of
t hese requirenents.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  sunmarized that the difference is the
statute as currently witten has m ninum standards and w thout
definition. He said the anendnent wll define the mninum
standards. He added that the North Sl ope Borough enploys police
officers and not VPSOs. He explained that the North Slope
Borough police officers would be required to neet the standards
under the anmendnent.

10: 02: 24 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked the aide to the bill's sponsor of the bil
to respond to Senator Wel echowski's coments.

MR. SCOIT addressed Senator Coghill's question and noted that
the sponsor objects to Senator Welechowski's anendnent. He
specified that the sponsor has received assurances from the
Department of Public Safety (DPS) that VPSOs, those who apply to
carry firearnms, will receive the identical arms training of ATS
and nunicipal police with the very same instructors at the very
sane training facility. He added that DPS is on record stating
that VPSCs will receive identical psychol ogical eval uations that
AST and muni ci pal police receive. He said the arm ng of VPSGCs is
goi ng to happen, possibly as soon as May 1 when the regul ations
are done. He revealed that DPS is changing the regulations to
all ow VPSCs to be arned.

SENATOR COCHI LL asked what woul d happen if the VPSCs were pl aced
under the Police Standards Council requirenents.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 4, 2014



10: 04: 15 AM

MR. SCOIT replied that the issue conmes down to funding. He said
the sponsor is very concerned that the fiscal note would get to
the point where the increased <costs wuld threaten the
communi ties and the VPSOCs who serve.

SENATOR COCGHILL remarked that he is hearing that the State would
have an additional cost. He noted that the communities would
have a choice and would bear the cost if they choose to arm
their VPSCs. He disclosed that he likes the idea of nmandating
t he same standards, but stated that he would honor the w shes of
the sponsor. He set forth that the issue cones down to who wll
be paying the added cost.

CHAI R DYSON asked what the proposed anendnent's fiscal inpact
woul d be.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI expl ai ned that training would cost
approximately $9,000 for each VPSO an anobunt that is not nuch
di fferent than what the proposed training cost.

10: 06: 10 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that he will mintain his objection and
asked for a roll call vote. Senators Wel echowski voted yea;
Senators G essel, Coghill, Chair Dyson voted nay; therefore
Amendnent 1 fails.

10: 06: 48 AM

M KE COONS, representing hinself, Palner, Al aska, noted his
support in armng VPSOs. He said his biggest concern pertains to
the VPSO training and how DPS handles investigations when a
firearmis used.

10: 10: 37 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced the committee will stand at ease.

10: 10: 50 AM

CHAIR DYSON remarked to M. Coons that his <concerns are
addressed in the bill's fiscal note. He asked M. Scott to

address M. Coon's concerns.

MR. SCOIT replied that the liability issue has been raised and
addr essed by DPS.

CHAI R DYSON asked what was stated by DPS.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- March 4, 2014



MR. SCOTIT answered that DPS has stated that every incident wll
be fully investigated. He said DPS has also stated on the record
that part of the fiscal note covers liability insurance that
goes to the regional nonprofits or | ocal muni cipality
adm ni stering the VPSO program

CHAI R DYSON noted that DPS representatives have spoken quite a
bit in favor of armng VPSGs with active supervision, training,
and cooperation. He conceded that there will be sonme inadequate
performances due to human nature. He recalled that arm ng VPSGs
has been an issue that has cone up for the last six or seven
years. He noted seeing an opinion shift fromnot armng VPSGs to
arm ng VPSCs.

CHAI R DYSON revealed that he recently raised the question of
what is done with a VPSO who has to deal with a nuisance bear in
a local dunp. He said clearly the response was that the VPSO is
expected to use his shotgun and do whatever is necessary to
scare the bear away or shoot the bear if there are no other
options. He questioned where a VPSO is allowed to use a weapon
to protect a village from bears but the sane VPSO is the only
person in a village who cannot be arned in other dangerous
situations that are less predictable than dealing with a bear.
He shared with the commttee that |ife changes when a gun is
pulled. He said even for a VPSO to pull their weapon to point at
anot her individual that significant things change. He added that
if there is ever a firearm discharge and soneone is wounded or
killed, huge investigations will follow He explained that given
SO many comunities that are very small and the State's
inability to cover the small communities wth AST, doctors, or
expert teachers, there has got to be sone adjustnents to deal
with a real situation. He remarked that AST has nearly as good
of reputation as the Canadian Munties. He explained that the
Canadi an Mounties have very simlar responsibilities and have to
cover vast territories where there my be no |aw enforcenent
ever or a community constable and it is a synbiotic relationship
not unlike what Al aska expects with ATS in rural areas. He set
forth that the state has cone to about as good a solution as the
State can at this tine.

10: 16: 03 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked if there was objection to SB 98 going forward.
He cl osed public testinony.

10: 16: 10 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- March 4, 2014



SENATOR G ESSEL SENATOR noved to report SB 98, |abeled 28-
LSO754\A from conmmttee wth individual recomendations and
attached fiscal note(s).

10: 16: 20 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced seeing no objection, SB 98 is reported
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

10: 16: 29 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.
SB 141- NATI ONAL GUARD | D & VEHI CLE FEES

10: 17: 20 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will take up SB 141.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI , bill sponsor, said SB 141 is a very sinple
bill. He said SB 141 will provide for a vehicle registration fee
wai ver for National Guard nenbers, approxinmately $100 per year
He remarked that National Guard nenbers get paid a pittance,
approximately $212 for the weekend an individual works per
nmonth. He added that the two weeks a National Guard nenber works
is also a snmall anpbunt. He revealed that the total annual anount
a National Guard nenber earns is approximtely $3000, nore if
depl oyed. He said providing a vehicle tax exenption is sonething
ot her states have done for National Guard nmenbers.

10: 18: 27 AM

MONI CA SOUTHWORTH, Staff for Senator Wel echowski, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, said she has a lot of background
i nformati on about the National Guard and other benefits that the
State of Al aska provides conpared to other states.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked how nmany other states waive vehicle
registration fees for National Guard nenbers.

MB5. SOQUTHWORTH answered that three other states waive fees:

Tennessee, New Mexi co, and Hawaii. She added that Virginia gives
Nat i onal Guard nmenbers a 50 percent discount for their
registration fee. She noted that Al aska offers special |icense

plates to National Guard nenbers for an additional $30, nost
states charge $5 to $25.

CHAIR DYSON noted that he saw sonewhere in the docunentation
that there are 4,000 National Quard nmenbers in Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- March 4, 2014



MS. SOUTHWORTH answer ed correct.
CHAI R DYSON asked how many National Guard nenbers are fulltine.

M5. SOUTHWORTH answered that are 3,773 active National @uard
menbers and 1,015 in the Reserves.

CHAIR DYSON asked to clarify that the active nenbers work
fulltime with the National CGuard

M5. SOUTHWORTH answer ed yes.

CHAI R DYSON added that the 1,000 Reserve nenbers are "weekend
warriors."

M5. SOUTHWORTH answer ed yes.

10: 20: 40 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked to clarify that a National Guard nenber
working fulltime makes a hi gher wage than the "weekend warrior."
She asked what the wages were for National Guard nenbers.

M5. SOUTHWORTH replied that the starting entry |evel pay for the
| onest rank starts at $1,531.50 per nonth.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the 1,000 National Guard nenbers work
ot her j obs.

M5. SOUTHWORTH answered yes. She explained that the National
Guard nenbers do nake nore noney in their other jobs and
financial security 1is not why nenbers participate in the
Reserves.

She said Al aska offers a lot of benefits to active and reserved
Nat i onal Guard nenbers: free fishing licenses, hunting |icenses,
educational benefits, job training, |ow cost insurance, travel
benefits, and base privileges. The Alaska National Guard
Enl i stment Association has increased benefits over the years for
menbers and to entice others to join.

She shared that she had spoken with a National Guard recruiter
who favors the bill and noted that each small benefit adds up
and helps with recruitnment. She shared that in the past 12 years
since forces have been deployed to Irag and Afghani stan, over
2.6 mllion soldiers have returned on a national I|evel. She
expl ained that the National Guard does not have funding |evels
of the other mlitary branches for advertising. She pointed out

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 4, 2014



the National Guard nenbers primarily joined based upon word of
mouth, job fairs, visiting schools and speaking with community
menbers. She reiterated that the small perks aid recruitnent.

10: 22: 52 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL addressed the fiscal note and noted that the
$100 is a biannual vehicle registration fee. She asked if the
$100 includes the local tax that is paid to the |ocal
gover nnent .

M5. SOUTHWORTH replied that | ocal tax is not included.

SENATOR G ESSEL addressed the fiscal note and asked if the
annual deficit fromwaiving the |license fee is $200, 000.

M5. SOUTHWORTH answer ed yes.

10: 24: 10 AM

AMY ERI CKSON, Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW), Al aska
Department of Adm nistration, Anchorage, Al aska, stated that DW
has no problem with inplenenting SB 141's directive if enacted.
She stated that DWW does anticipate that there wll be
approximately 80 hours of programing tinme and approximtely
$11,400 in progranm ng cost to add a new field for the National
Guard exenption. She noted that Senator G essel's fiscal note
cal cul ati on was correct.

10: 25: 13 AM

STEPHEN BURRI S, President, Alaska National Guard Enlisted
Associ ati on (ANGEA), Anchorage, Al aska, explained that ANGEA is
not a part of the National Guard. He said ANGEA represents the
National CGuard soldiers and airnen in Al aska. He explained that
he brought the bill forward based upon Hawaii nenbers who noted
that their state enacted a waiver for National Guard vehicle
registration. He revealed that Florida and Vernont also offer
free special license plates. He added that there are 12 to 15
other states who offer a reduced rate for special |I|icense
plates. He said the big thing that ANGEA is trying to show is
when ANGEA nenbers are called up to state active duty and work
at a mlitary base pay rate, nmenbers do not receive Basic
Al |l owance for Subsistence (BAS) or Basic Al lowance for Housing
(BAH). He explained that when a National Guard nenbers do not
receive BAS or BAH when in active duty for the State to take
care of flooding and snow renoval. He asserted that the bill's
intent is to help conpensate nenbers. He concurred that added
benefits are great for recruiting and retention.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- March 4, 2014



He noted a correction for Ms. Southworth's testinony. He pointed
out that there approximately 1,200 to 1,400 fulltinme National
Guardsnen and the rest are part-tine "weekend warriors."

He explained that the fiscal note was calculated based upon
approxi mately 4,000 nenbers receiving an annual $100 wai ver that
is derived fromthe biannual $200 registration.

CHAIR DYSON noted that he suspected that the nunbers M.
Sout hwort h provi ded had been fli pped.

10: 27: 43 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked to verify that the bill benefits active
duty nenbers and not retired nenbers.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI answer ed yes.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that his son-in-law was a fulltine
Guardsman and he m ght have a conflict.

CHAI R DYSON asked if wanted to recuse hinself.

SENATOR COGHI LL replied no. He added that his daughter may very
wel | benefit fromthe bill

CHAIR DYSON stated that the bill wll nmke at least a snall
di fference and a significant synbolic one.

CHAI R DYSON announced that the Chair will entertain a notion.

10: 28: 34 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SB 141, version 28-LS1139\U,
from commttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal note(s).

10: 28: 50 AM
CHAI R DYSON stated that seeing no objection, SB 141 is reported
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

10: 29: 02 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 10:29 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 4, 2014



